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From: Rachelle Cote
Sent: February 14, 2022 10:38 AM
Cc: Caroline Cox; Nicki Duke; Jocelyn Moreno; _PHI
Subject: Ontario Moving to Next Phase of Reopening on February 17 / L’Ontario passera à 

l’étape suivante de son déconfinement le 17 février

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

On behalf of Dr. Corneil, Acting Medical Officer of Health/CEO / De la part de Dr Corneil, médecin hygiéniste par 
intérim/Directeur exécutif  

Good morning, 

The Government of Ontario has announced that the province will move to the next phase of reopening on February 17. 
Please see media release below. Click here for the French media release. We will share the regulation once it is 
available. 

************* 
Bonjour, 

Le gouvernement de l’Ontario a annoncé que la province passera à la prochaine phase de réouverture le 17 février. 
Cliquez ici pour le communiqué de presse français. Nous partagerons le règlement dès qu’il sera disponible. 

Dr. Glenn Corneil
Acting Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer
Timiskaming Health Unit

NEWS RELEASE 

Ontario Moving to Next Phase of Reopening on 
February 17 
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Improvements in key indicators allowing province to safely ease 
public health measures sooner 

February 14, 2022 
Premier's Office 

    

 

TORONTO — With key public health and health system indicators continuing to 
improve, the Ontario government, in consultation with the Chief Medical Officer of 
Health, is cautiously and gradually easing public health measures sooner, with the next 
phase of measures being eased on February 17, 2022 at 12:01 a.m. 

“Given how well Ontario has done in the Omicron wave we are able to fast track our 
reopening plan,” said Premier Doug Ford. “This is great news and a sign of just how far 
we've come together in our fight against the virus. While we aren’t out of the woods just 
yet we are moving in the right direction.” 

Last month, Ontario released its plan to follow a cautious and phased approach to lifting 
public health and workplace safety measures if health indicators continued to remain 
stable and improve. Positivity rates have fallen and new admissions to hospital and ICU 
have been declining week over week, signalling that the Omicron peak is behind us. 
Over the coming days and weeks, these trends are expected to continue, allowing the 
province to safely accelerate its timelines. 

“Thanks to the province’s high vaccination rates and the continued sacrifices of 
Ontarians, we are now in a position where we can move forward in our plan earlier than 
anticipated,” said Christine Elliott, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health. “With 
hospitalizations and ICU admissions continuing to decline, we are committed to 
maintaining a gradual and cautious approach to protect our hospital capacity and 
ensure patients can access the care they need when they need it.” 

Effective February 17, 2022 

Ontario will further ease public health measures, including, but not limited to: 

 Increasing social gathering limits to 50 people indoors and 100 people outdoors 
 Increasing organized public event limits to 50 people indoors, with no limit 

outdoors 
 Removing capacity limits in the following indoor public settings where proof of 

vaccination is required, including but not limited to:  
o Restaurants, bars and other food or drink establishments without dance 

facilities 
o Non-spectator areas of sports and recreational fitness facilities, including 

gyms 
o Cinemas 
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o Meeting and event spaces, including conference centres or convention 
centres 

o Casinos, bingo halls and other gaming establishments 
o Indoor areas of settings that choose to opt-in to proof of vaccination 

requirements. 
 Allowing 50 per cent of the usual seating capacity at sports arenas 
 Allowing 50 percent of the usual seating capacity for concert venues and 

theatres 
 Increasing indoor capacity limits to 25 per cent in the remaining higher-risk 

settings where proof of vaccination is required, including nightclubs, restaurants 
where there is dancing, as well as bathhouses and sex clubs 

 Increasing capacity limits for indoor weddings, funerals or religious services, 
rites, or ceremonies to the number of people who can maintain two metres 
physical distance. Capacity limits are removed if the location opts-in to use proof 
of vaccination or if the service, rite, or ceremony is occurring outdoors. 

Capacity limits in other indoor public settings, such as grocery stores, pharmacies, retail 
and shopping malls, will be maintained at, or increased to, the number of people who 
can maintain two metres physical distance. 

In addition, as of 8:00 a.m. on Friday, February 18, 2022, Ontario is expanding booster 
dose eligibility to youth aged 12 to 17. Appointments can be booked through the 
provincial booking system and the Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre, as well as at 
select pharmacies administering the Pfizer vaccine. Appointments will be booked for 
approximately six months (168 days) after a second dose. To book an appointment 
online, individuals must be 12 years old at the time of appointment. 

Effective March 1, 2022 

Ontario intends to take additional steps to ease public health measures if public health 
and health system indicators continue to improve. This includes lifting capacity limits in 
all remaining indoor public settings. 

Ontario will also lift proof of vaccination requirements for all settings at this time. 
Businesses and other settings may choose to continue to require proof of vaccination. 
Masking requirements will remain in place at this time, with a specific timeline to lift this 
measure to be communicated at a later date. 

To manage COVID-19 over the long-term, public health units can deploy local and 
regional responses based on local context and conditions. 

“Thanks to the efforts of Ontarians to help blunt the transmission of Omicron, our health 
care indicators suggest a general improvement in the COVID-19 situation in the 
province,” said Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health. “We are now in a 
position to lift more public health measures, but it is important to stay vigilant, as we 
don’t want to cause any further disruption to people’s everyday lives. We must continue 
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to prevent the transmission of COVID-19 in our communities by following the measures 
in place and by vaccinating those who have not yet received their doses.” 

    

 

Quick Facts 

 Due to a steady decline in COVID-19 related hospitalizations and ICU 
admissions, on February 10, 2022, the government lifted Directive 2 to begin a 
gradual and cautious resumption of non-urgent and non-emergent surgeries and 
procedures across the province. 

 Since Ontario entered modified Step Two, over 202,000 Ontarians have received 
a first dose and more than 2,575,000 Ontarians have received their booster. 

 To further support the province’s cautious easing of public health measures, 
Ontario is expanding access to free rapid tests, with 5.5 million rapid tests to be 
distributed each week for eight weeks through pharmacies, grocery stores, and 
community partners in vulnerable communities. 

 Effective January 4, 2022, the use of the enhanced vaccine certificate with QR 
code and the Verify Ontario app must be used in settings where proof of 
vaccination is required. 

 Download your vaccine certificate by visiting https://covid-19.ontario.ca/get-
proof/. 

 To have your vaccine certificate mailed to you, call the Provincial Vaccine 
Contact Centre at 1-833-943-3900. 

 On January 17, 2022, Health Canada approved the antiviral Paxlovid. Ontario 
received approximately 10,000 courses of treatment from the federal government 
in January, with additional allocations of more than 10,000 courses for February 
and 33,000 courses for March. Eligibility is currently focused on adults with the 
highest risk of severe outcomes. 

 In response to the highly transmissible Omicron variant, Ontario updated its 
COVID-19 testing and isolation guidelines. Learn more about what to do if you 
have symptoms or have been exposed to COVID-19. 

    

 

Additional Resources 

 Ontario Expanding Access to Free Rapid Tests for General Public 
 Ontario Outlines Steps to Cautiously and Gradually Ease Public Health 

Measures 
 Proof of Vaccination Guidance under the Reopening Ontario (A Flexible 

Response to COVID-19) Act, 2020 
 All Ontarians 18+ Eligible for COVID-19 Booster Appointments at Three-Month 

Interval 
 For public inquiries, please contact the Provincial Vaccine Contact Centre at 1-

833-943-3900 (TTY for people who are deaf, hearing-impaired or speech-
impaired: 1-866-797-0007). 
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 For resources in multiple languages to help local communication efforts in 
responding to COVID-19, visit Ontario’s COVID-19 communication resources 
webpage. 

 Businesses that have questions about public health and workplace safety 
measures can call the Stop the Spread Business Information Line at 1-888-444-
3659. 

    

    
 

    

 


